
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Bankston

AGENDA June 03, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Bankston

Presentation Commissioner Greg Beck will honor Thomas "Skip" Finley for 30 years of dedicated service to
Hamilton County.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - May 13, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - May 13, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - May 20, 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report April 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report April 2015

Report Report on Debt Obligation - General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015A.

Report Report on Debt Obligation - General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B.

Res. No. 615-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, and the bond and
oath of notaries previously elected.

Res. No. 615-2 A Resolution accepting the bid of Saitech, Inc. for one (1) year contract unit pricing, with the
option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, beginning June 3, 2015 through June 2,
2016, for Dell Latitude 14 Rugged laptop computers amounting to $2,420.43 each for the
Sheriff’s Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-3 A Resolution approving an Interlocal Agreement among the City of Ridgeside, the County
Trustee, and Hamilton County relative to the collection of the City of Ridgeside Sanitation Fees.

Res. No. 615-4 A Resolution approving the final contract renewal with Sun Life Financial for reinsurance for the
County’s group medical plan and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary
to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-5 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a $49,425 agreement with Barge Waggoner
Sumner and Cannon, Inc. for professional services to create a mobile device app for interactive
displays on the new extension of the Tennessee Riverwalk.

Res. No. 615-6 A Resolution accepting the bids of Shields Electronic Supply, Inc. and Accredited Lock Supply
Company for contract unit pricing for door access materials for the period of June 5, 2015,
through June 4, 2016, for the Telecommunications Department and to authorize the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-7 A Resolution accepting the quotation from Sports, Play, and Active Recreation for Kids (SPARK)
for the purchase of SPARK PE instructional curriculum packets for the Step ONE Program to be
used by Hamilton County Schools amounting to $17,118.60 for the Chattanooga-Hamilton
County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-8 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of April 1, 2015,
through April 30, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of Saitech, Inc. for a one (1) year contract, beginning June 3,
2015 through June 2, 2016, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for
HP printers  for the Information Technology Services Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 615-10 A Resolution accepting the bid of Southern Athletic Fields, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing,
beginning June 3, 2015, through June 2, 2016, with the option to renew for one (1) additional
one (1) year term, for infield clay mix for the Recreation Department and to authorize the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-11 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract in the amount of $188,799.05 with
the Tennessee Department of Transportation for the Hamilton County Courts Community
Service Program with a contract period beginning July 01, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016.

Res. No. 615-12 A Resolution accepting the qualifications and fee schedule of AMEC Environmental &
Infrastructure Inc., Geoservices, LLC, K.S. Ware & Associates LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc.,
MC2 Engineers, Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., PDM Engineering Associates, LLC, S&ME,
Inc., Stantec, Terracon, and Thompson Engineering, for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning
July 3, 2015 through July 2, 2016, for Geoenvironmental consulting services and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-13 A Resolution accepting the bid of J&J Contractors, Inc. for construction of the Tri-Community
Volunteer Fire Department Station 3 amounting to $2,833,700 and authorizing the County Mayor
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-14 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County to execute and create
a stream and wetlands conservation easement upon property jointly-owned by Hamilton County
and the City of Chattanooga, designating Hamilton County Parks and Recreation as the holder
of said easement located within the Enterprise South Industrial Park.

Res. No. 615-15 A Resolution accepting the bid of Nabco Electric for the construction of the Hixson Pike and
Thrasher Pike intersection signalization for an amount not to exceed $150,666.35 and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-16 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to enter into and execute a "Memorandum of
Understanding" with the RiverCity Company relative to property owned by Hamilton County.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 13, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 13, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 13th day of May, 2015, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, Deputy Clerk 

Brooke Weaver called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting 

a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Mackey arrived 

after the roll was called. Total present – 8.  Total absent -1. 

 

 Also in attendance were members of the County Mayor’s administrative staff, 

County Attorney Neil Southerland, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Graham introduced Pastor Jonathan Schwartz, Brainerd 

Presbyterian Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the 

pledge to the flag. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 13, 2015 
 

2 
 

 

PRESENTATION – SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 

 Sheriff Jim Hammond spoke regarding the Annual Sheriff’s Department Report. 

He noted that this annual report is a CALEA (Commission on Accreditation for Law 

Enforcement Agencies) requirement. He pointed out that Hamilton County was one of 

only five Sheriff’s Offices in the State to have received this accreditation.  

 

 At this time Chairman Fields indicated he should have closed the recessed 

meeting and gone into agenda session for this presentation.  He asked Sheriff 

Hammond to pause his presentation. County Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll and each 

of the member answered present. 

 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business for the 

Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 13, 2015 
 

3 
 

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

     Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 13, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 13th day of May, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were members of the County Mayor’s administrative staff led 

by Chief of Staff Michael Compton. County Auditor Bill McGriff was present as was 

Assistant County Attorney Neill Southerland until County Attorney Rheubin Taylor 

arrived early in the agenda meeting.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 The Juvenile Court Clerk’s Reports for January and February 2015 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 Resolution No. 515-29 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution Nos. 515-33 and 515-44 were assigned to the Zoning Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

 Resolution Nos. 515-32, 515-34, 515-39 through 515-43 were assigned to the 
Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

 Resolution No. 515-37 was not used. 
 Resolution Nos. 515-30, 515-31, 515-35, 515-36, and 515-38 were heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 
 

 

PRESENTATION – SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 

(CONTINUED FROM RECESSED MEETING) 

  

After highlighting and discussing several items during the recessed meeting, 

Hamilton County Sheriff Jim Hammond distributed a copy of the 2014 Annual Sheriff’s 

Department Report to members of the Commission, and the Mayor’s office. Clerk 

Knowles asked Sheriff Hammond to furnish his office a copy of the report to be filed in 

the record.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 3

 

Commissioner Haynes thanked Sheriff Hammond for his presentation and spoke 

about how Student Resource Officers (SRO) are a valuable asset to the department, 

school district, and the community. 

  

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution Nos. 515-30, 515-31, 515-35, 515-36, 

and 515-38 would now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 515-30 

 

Michael Compton, Chief of Staff to the Mayor spoke regarding this item. The 

Resolution appoints Patricia M. McKoy to the Chattanooga Area Regional 

Transportation Authority (CARTA) Board of Directors for a term ending October 19, 

2016. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 4

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 515-31 

 

Chief of Staff Compton addressed the Resolution. It recommends appointment of 

County Auditor Bill McGriff and the reappointment of Mike Moon to the Hamilton County 

Water & Wastewater Treatment Authority Board.  Both terms are to end June 2, 2020. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 515-35 

  

 Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure 

of Commissioner discretionary bond funds in an amount not to exceed thirty thousand 

dollars to assist with the building and installation of a playground at East Brainerd 

Elementary School. The original bid approved by Resolution No. 114-17 for the 

construction of East Brainerd Elementary School included a seventy five thousand 

dollar budget for four playgrounds. It was noted the playground budget was not 

sufficient and one hundred twenty five thousand dollars was needed.  

 

In response to the need for additional funds Commissioner Boyd agreed to match 

up to twenty five thousand dollars of funds raised by the PTA. The PTA raised twenty 

thousand dollars and Commissioner Smedley contributed five thousand dollars from her 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 5

district seven discretionary fund.  Currently the school is located in district seven; the 

new East Brainerd Elementary school is being built at the former David Brainerd 

Christian School site in district eight. The new location will open in August 2015. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 515-36 

  

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure 

of Commissioner discretionary bond funds, as allotted to district eight, in an amount of 

$10,481.36 for the purchase of interactive teaching centers for Chattanooga School for 

the Liberal Arts (CSLA). TriStar Digital Connections, LLC was the low quote for the 

three carts, three projectors, and two computers.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 515-38 

 

Commissioner Mackey expressed support for the Resolution that authorizes 

purchase of a digital sign for the South Chattanooga Recreation Center. He also urged 

the Commission to restore the previous policy pertaining to discretionary funding. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 6

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would meet in the adjacent conference room following today’s 

meeting. 

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that 

the Finance Committee would meet in the Commission Room following today’s meeting.   

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Boyd reported that the National Science Foundation has awarded 

a $300,000 grant to Public Education Foundation and University of Southern California 

School of Cinematic Arts to support the first-in-the nation cross-country collaboration 

using the Gigabit network. With USC, students at STEM School Chattanooga are 

designing experiments to study the effects of human activity on microbial ecosystems 

both here at home in Chattanooga, as well as a continent away in the Pacific Ocean. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 7

 

Commissioner Graham wished everyone a happy be-lated Mother’s Day. He 

expressed pride that he was able to spend time with his Mother on this special day. 

 

Commissioner Mackey, Chairman of Security and Corrections announced that 

the next committee meeting will be Thursday, May 20th in the commission room at 8:30 

am.  It has been called at the request of Chief Magistrate Randy Russell. The meeting 

has been properly advertised. 

 

Commissioner Haynes reminded everyone that school graduations and 

promotions will be taking place this week and next week.  

 

Chairman Fields congratulated Louie Brogdon, reporter for the Times Free Press 

who covers Hamilton County government, on his recent marriage. 

 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 
 

 8

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned. The 

next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 20th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

__________  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 
 
COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 20, 2015 
 
 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 20th day of May, 2015, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner 

Boyd was absent and Commissioner Fairbanks arrived during discussion of Resolutions 

No. 515-32 and 515-39-43. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Commissioner Boyd would not be attending 

today’s meeting and Commissioner Fairbanks was running approximately thirty minutes 

late.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

2 

 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Commissioner Graham introduced Senior Minister Gary Armes, Hickory Valley 

Christian Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to 

the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of April 29, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of April 29, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of May 6, 2015, be approved, treat 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

3 

 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting May 11, 

2015. 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORTS 

  

The Juvenile Court Clerk reports for January and February 2015 were submitted 

and made a matter of record. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-29  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND THE OATHS OF 

JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-29. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

4 

 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd 

and Commissioner Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total 

“Aye” votes – 7. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 515-30, 515-31, 515-35, 515-36, 

and 515-38 be considered at this time. He noted that they were heard by a Committee 

of the Whole. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-30  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT BY 

THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA AREA 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (CARTA) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR A TERM ENDING OCTOBER 19, 2016.  

 

It was noted that this resolution appoints Patricia M. McKoy. 

  

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-30. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

5 

 

  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-31  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENT OF 

ONE MEMBER AND THE REAPPOINTMENT OF ONE MEMBER BY THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY WATER & WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR TERM ENDING JUNE 2, 2020.  

 

 This resolution appoints County Auditor Bill McGriff and reappoints Mike Moon. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-31.  

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

6 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-35  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

COMMISSIONER DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED THIRTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($30,000.00) TO ASSIST WITH THE 

BUILDING/INSTALLATION OF A PLAYGROUND AT EAST BRAINERD 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-35.  

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

7 

 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-36  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

COMMISSIONER DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS IN AN AMOUNT OF $10,481.36 

FOR THE PURCHASE OF INTERACTIVE TEACHING CENTERS FOR 

CHATTANOOGA SCHOOL FOR THE LIBERAL ARTS (CSLA).  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-36. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

8 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-38  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO THIRTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($30,000.00) IN DISCRETIONARY BOND 

FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR) TO PURCHASE A DIGITAL SIGN FOR 

THE SOUTH CHATTANOOGA RECREATIONAL CENTER.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-38.  

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 515-33 and 515-44 be considered 

together at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

9 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-33  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO O-1 OFFICE DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

6107 OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-44  A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE DISTANCE 

REQUIREMENT FOR THE SALE AND ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION OF BEER TO 

FIVE HUNDRED (500) FEET OF A SCHOOL, CHURCH, DAY CARE, OR OTHER 

PUBLIC PLACE OF GATHERING.  

  

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 515-33 and 515-44. He stated that the Zoning Committee 

recommended approval for both items, but the recommendation was not unanimous on 

Resolution No. 415-44. Commissioner Haynes asked that Resolutions Nos. 515-33 and 

515-44 be heard separately.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-33. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.   

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

10 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-44. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Nay”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Fairbanks were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6. Total 

“Nay” votes – 1. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 515-32, 515-34, and 515-39 through 

515-43 be considered together at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

11 

 

 Clerk Knowles asked that it be made a matter of record that Resolution No. 515-

37 was not used.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-37 WAS NOT USED. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-32  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION OF 

DATAWORKS PLUS, LLC FOR LIVESCAN PLUS SYSTEM EQUIPMENT 

UPGRADES AMOUNTING TO $50, 650.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-34  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

CARITHERS-WALLACE-COURTENAY, LLC, MY OFFICE PRODUCTS, NOI, 

SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC., INTERIOR ELEMENTS, LLC, TENNEDD PRODUCTS 

COMPANY, AND ERNIE MORRIS ENTERPRISES FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, 

BEGINNING MAY 20, 2015, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2015, FOR SCHOOL 

FURNISHINGS FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AND ANY 

ADDITIONAL SCHOOLS NEEDING FURNITURE FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

12 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-39  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH TRUE NORTH GEOGRAPHIC 

TECHNOLOGIES, LLC TO PROVIDE ARCGIS-BASED MAPPING TOOLS THAT 

INTERFACE WITH THE ARC/TMIS DATABASES MAINTAINED BY HAMILTON 

COUNTY ON BEHALF OF THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION AT A 

COST NOT TO EXCEED $24, 720.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-40  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CAPITOL 

WHOLESALE FENCE COMPANY, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, 

BEGINNING MAY 20, 2015 THROUGH MAY 19, 2016, FOR FENCING MATERIALS 

FOR THE RECREATIONAL DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-41 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION GRANT-IN-AID CONTRACT FOR 

$371,300.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO SUPPORT 

THE DELIVERY OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2015 

– JUNE 30, 2016. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

13 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-42  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHIELDS 

ELECTRONIC SUPPLY, INC. AND BEACON TECHNOLOGIES FOR CONTRACT 

UNIT PRICING FOR AVIGILON CAMERA EQUIPMENT FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 

5, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 4, 2016, FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 515-43 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 

COMMUNICATIONS RESOURCES, INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, 

BEGINNING MAY 21, 2015, THROUGH MAY 20, 2016, FOR SHORE TEL 

TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Graham asked that Resolution No. 515-34 be heard separately.  

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 515-32 and 

515-39 through 515-43 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 515-32 and 515-39 through 515-43. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

14 

 

 

In response to a question from Commissioner Beck as to the connection between 

Resolution No. 515-42 and Resolution No. 215-27A previously adopted, Commissioner 

Graham clarified that Resolution No. 515-42 was unrelated to Resolution No. 215-27A 

that was passed in February 2015. Resolution No. 215-27A authorized the expenditure 

of funds for security camera upgrades in schools.  Resolution No. 515-42 authorizes 

one year contract unit pricing for security cameras that may be needed in various 

county buildings, not specific to schools.  

 

County Auditor Bill McGriff responded to questions regarding the differences as 

well. 

 

Commissioner Beck stated that a list of schools receiving camera upgrades was 

to have been given to Commissioners when Resolution No. 215-27A was passed, and 

the list has not been received.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s comments, Commissioner Mackey asked 

that Resolution No. 515-42 be postponed until the list was provided.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

postpone Resolution No. 515-42.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

15 

 

In response to questions, Purchasing Director, Gail Roppo, clarified the contract 

used for Resolution No. 215-27A is being purchased off contracts that the school board 

already has in place. She stated that Resolution No. 515-42 was the price going forward 

for new schools or county buildings that need cameras. It was noted that the two 

Resolutions authorize the purchase of separate items on separate contracts.  

 

Commissioner Beck withdrew his second to postpone Resolution No. 515-42. 

The Motion to postpone failed due to a lack of a second.  

 

Commissioner Mackey also expressed concern over not receiving the list of 

schools receiving camera upgrades. He stated that he would not be supporting 

Resolution No. 515-42.  

 

Commissioner Graham asked that Resolution No. 515-42 be heard as a separate 

item.  

 

Gary Waters, Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary Services for the Department 

of Education, responded to questions and agreed to make a phone call to get the 

requested information on school security cameras.  He returned to the meeting shortly 

thereafter and indicated the information would be e-mailed to the Commission office. 

Upon receipt of the list it was promptly distributed to the Commission and the Clerk. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

16 

 

At this time, Chairman Fields ruled that without objection Resolution No. 515-42 

would be pulled from the finance group of resolutions and voted on separately. He 

asked for a roll call vote on the remaining items.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution Nos. 515-32, 515-39 through 41, and 515-43 were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total 

present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the same Motion and second for the previous 

resolutions would stand for Resolution No. 515-42.  He asked for a roll call vote on that 

item. 

 

The foregoing Resolution No. 515-42 was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

17 

 

“Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked for Resolution No. 515-34 to be heard at this time.  

 

Commissioner Graham and Mr. Waters provided details regarding Resolution 

No. 515-34. Commissioner Graham stated that he chose for this item to be heard 

separately as there had not been a representative of the Department of Education 

present during committee discussions. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion regarding this item from 

Commissioners or the public. There was none. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 515-34. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. 

Total “Aye” votes – 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

18 

 

Mr. Waters thanked members of the Commission for the opportunity to serve the 

Commission, the school system, and the citizens of Hamilton County. He also thanked 

and praised the administrative staff on behalf of the school system.  

 

Chairman Fields thanked Mr. Waters on behalf of the Commission for his years 

of service to Hamilton County. Mr. Waters was given a round of applause.  

  

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Smedley announced that Monday, May 25th will be Commissioner 

Fairbank’s birthday. Commissioner Fairbanks pointed out that Commissioner Smedley 

also had an upcoming birthday.  Members of the Commission sang Happy Birthday to 

both.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks announced that the Sale Creek softball team and the 

Soddy Daisy baseball team were both in the state tournament. He wished them good 

luck in upcoming games.   

 

Commissioner Bankston congratulated the Central High School softball team for 

advancing to the state tournament, and for breaking a record by hitting five home runs 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

19 

 

in yesterday’s game. He also recognized Ooltewah High School for advancing to the 

state tournament as well.  

 

Commissioner Graham reminded members of the Commission and the audience 

about the Memorial Day ceremony Monday, May 25th at 11:00 am at the National 

Cemetery. He also thanked Commissioners for the discussion that took place at today’s 

meeting. In closing, he emphasized the importance of knowing exactly how funds are 

being used before voting in the future.  

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke about the importance of development in Hamilton 

County and allowing free enterprise to exist.  

 

Commissioner Haynes recognized the Hixson Wildcat’s tennis team for 

advancing to the state tournament.  

 

Commissioner Beck spoke about the necessity of having better communication 

between the school system, the Mayor’s office and the Commission.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke about remembering those who have made the ultimate 

sacrifice and their families on Memorial Day. He also spoke about the READ 20 

program. READ 20 is a program that promotes the importance of reading with children 

at least 20 minutes every day. Mayor Coppinger announced that to date, half a million 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

20 

 

books have been distributed to schools throughout the County. He added that today, 

Gann’s Middle Valley was awarded $10,000 in donated funds for having a 90% 

participation rate. He encouraged other schools in Hamilton County to participate in the 

program.  

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that he attended the bond closing with Finance 

Administrator Albert Kiser, other members of the financial team, and Attorney Taylor. He 

praised the financial team and legal counsel for their hard work. He added that by 

closing the bonds, the County was able to save taxpayer’s a significant amount of 

money while not extending the life of the bonds.  

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked Mr. Waters for his 40 years of building and maintaining 

Hamilton County school buildings. Mr. Waters, Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary 

Services for the Department of Education will retire on June 30th. Mayor Coppinger 

noted that he will be greatly missed and wished him the best in his retirement. 

 

Chairman Fields announced the Security and Corrections Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Mackey, would be meeting next Wednesay, May 27th at 8:30 am in the 

adjacent conference room. He also stated that budget presentations would begin today 

at 12:30 in the Commission room.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

21 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Bill Reesor residing at 1404 Woodway Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 addressed 

members of the Commission. He spoke at length in opposition to a property tax 

increase, and the necessity of improving the quality of education in public schools. He 

asked members of the Commission to look further into how money the Commission 

allocates to the school system is spent.  

 

 In response, Commissioner Graham explained that once the Commission 

appropriates funds to the school system, the Commission has no control over how it is 

spent. He advised Mr. Reesor to present his information to the school board.   

 

 Mr. Reesor responded by asking the Commission to vote against any property 

tax increase.  

 

 Mayor Coppinger praised the school system in Hamilton County. He encouraged 

respectful dialogue when debating budget issues.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 20, 2015 
 

22 

 

 Jim Snuggs residing at 9854 Leslie Sandidge Dr. Ooltewah, TN 37363 

addressed the Commission regarding funding for schools. He encouraged using all 

resources available to improve the public school system.  

 

 Commissioner Beck reminded members of the Commission, the audience, and 

security that only members of the press holding a press pass can be in the upper 

balcony of the Commission room. 

  

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, May 27, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

       

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

Approved: 

   

________  

Date  Clerk’s Initials 

 

        











































 

 

No. 615-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BOND AND OATH OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED.  

 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public 
 are hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths 
 therefor are approved as taken; and 

 
3.  That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

 is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
 been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 



 

 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 
  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1

 
Camille L. Anderson 6923 Cooley Road McKee Foods Corp. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 10260 McKee Road 
 423-475-9877 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-7111 
 
Amanda Atkins 1238 West Fairfax Drive Eron Epstein 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 713 Cherry Street 
 423-994-8141 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-267-1512 
 
Dorothy J. August 57 S. Wooten Road Realty Center of Chattanooga 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 505 Riverfront Parkway 
 423-321-4960 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-9999 
 
Jeffrey Bell 462 South Crest Road The UPS Store 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 3712 Ringgold Road 
 423-622-1425 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-624-7511 
 
Angela C. Blevins 3400 Jenkins Road Comtrust FCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 1620 Gunbarrel Road 
 423-322-7376 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-5600 
 
Michelle Boyd 13042 Blakeslee Drive Winesett-Hill Constructors, Inc. 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 5173 Austin Road 
 423-332-3626 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-2477 
 
Debra L. Brooks 6728 Hickory Manor Circle N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 N/A 
 423-344-4769 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Debbie S. Byrd 7809 Bacon Meadow Drive Chattanooga Federal CU 
 Georgetown, TN 37336 2100 Stein Drive 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-3738 
 
Wendy B. Crumley 16410 Crestview Dr. Regions Bank 
 Sale Creek, TN 37379 11314 Dayton Pike 
 423-243-8984 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-243-1939 
 
H. Thomas Crump, Jr. 1303 N. Concord Road Herbert Thornbury 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 100 W. M.L. King Blvd, Ste. 500 
 423-991-2231 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-2221 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2

 
Deborah Dennis 223 Pembrook Lane Cornerstone Community Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 8966 Old Lee Hwy 
 972-467-4678 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-385-3170 
 
Carol K. Doucette 223 Frawley Road Chattanooga Neurology Assoc. 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 721 Glenwood Dr, Ste. 467 
 423-591-2660 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-698-3423 
 
Erica Ellis 93 Clearbrooks Drive Best Law Office 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 707 Georgia Ave, Ste. 300 
 423-827-7347 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-424-0887 
 
Jennifer Ellis 405 Patten Chapel Road Leitner, Williams, Dooley, et al 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 200 W. M.L. King Blvd, Ste. 500 
 423-298-1706 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-265-0214 
 
M. Scott Ferguson 11 Stone Point Lane BB&T- Huffaker Insurance 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 735 Broad St, Ste. 100 
 423-886-6331 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-0711 
 
Terri Fillman 6223 Tallant Road Southern Advenist University 
 McDonald, TN 37353 4881 Taylor Circle 
 423-504-3797 Collegedale, TN 37315 
  423-236-2716 
 
Donna Gooden 5975 Winnipeg Ct. Hefferlin & Kronenberg 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 525 W. Main St. 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-3656 
 
Karen Grider 7200 Flagstone Dr. Zotec Partners 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 5959 Shallowford Rd, Ste. 575 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-6570 
 
Kristy L. Guhne 11216  Fritts Road Alternative Visions Hair Academy 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 6227 Lee Highway, Ste. K 
 423-802-1626 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-510-1886 
 
Christina Hinson 4109 Cummings Highway A Veterans Bonding Co. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 615 Walnut Street, Ste. 200 
 423-584-5235 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-1330 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3

 
Gwen N. Holman 937 Cleveland Dr. Principal Financial Group 
 Rossville, GA 30741 605 Chesnut St. 
 423-605-2688 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-424-4197 
 
Ann Isham 1500 Heritage Landing Drive Comtrust FCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 1020 Riverfront Parkway 
 423-756-3300 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-0207 
 
Patricia Ivey 8215 Oxford Dr. Self Employed 
 Hixson, TN 37343 Same 
 423-201-4694 Same 
  423-309-9393 
 
Cynthia Jennemann 10730 Worley Rd. Spears, Moore, Rebman, et al. 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 801 Broad St, 6th Floor 
 423-332-7175 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7000 
 
Elizabeth Jessee 1642 Yates Springs Road Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 51 Lost Mound Drive, Ste. 135 
 423-504-4094 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-602-2137 
 
Marcus Johnson 900 Mtn Creek Rd, Apt. R307 First Tennessee Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 4430 Hwy 58 
 865-712-6726 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-242-1322 
 
Kari A. Lawman 12118 McGhee Rd. City of Chattanooga (CDOT) 
 Apison, TN 37302 1250 Market St, Ste. 3030 
 706-581-4691 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-6368 
 
Demetria Leak 5612 Delaine Lane Moccasin Bend Mental Health 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 100 Moccasin Bend Rd. 
 423-504-1115 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-265-2271 
 
Rebecca P. LeVally 1814 Rivergate Terrace City of Chattanooga 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1250 Market St, Ste. 3030 
 423-886-6228 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-5955 
 
Paulette Lewis P.O. Box 23323 Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37422 626 N Crest Rd, Apt. B 
 770-833-3967 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  Same 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4

 
Tonya J. Lewis 1741 Varner Rd. Cumberland Title 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1300 Broad St, Ste. 200 
 423-488-9218 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-4001 
 
Mary Beth McNeese 3355 Happy Valley Rd. Title Insurance Company 
 Rossville, GA 30741 7405 Shallowford Rd, Ste. 540 
 423-883-4838 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-0913 
 
Amanda R. Miller 510 Lullwater Road Henderson, Hutcherson, et al. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 1200 Market Street 
 225-603-5496 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7771 
 
Thomas Joseph Moore 21 South Crest Rd. Truck N Trailers USA, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 4591 North Access Rd. 
 423-622-4737 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-876-1990 
 
Chris Morrow 6220 Shallowford Rd, Apt. 332 Regions Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 5570 Highway 153 
 423-834-0274 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-321-6331 
 
Freida Nance 9812 Hixson Pike Title Services of Tennessee 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 6025 Lee Highway, Ste. 105 
 423-842-2805 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4475 
 
Deborah Oliver 9606 Thornberry Dr. Star Properties 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 30 Tunnel Blvd, Ste. 121 
 423-991-3031 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-629-1557 
 
Donna Parrish 114 Paxton Dr. Cumberland Title 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 1300 Broad St, Ste. 200 
 423-653-7754 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-4001 
 
Jennifer S. Plunkett 1201 Highland Dr. Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 832 Georgia Ave, Ste. 1200 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-785-8224 
 
Melissa C. Railey 137 Davenport Lane TN Valley Infrastructure Group 
 LaFayette, GA 30728 1200 Mtn. Creek Rd, Ste. 410 
 423-413-4923 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-266-0502 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5

 
Sarah W. Roach 8325 Heron Circle Ooltewah United Methodist 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 6131 Relocation Way 
 423-344-3158 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-9216 
 
Dorothy A. Robinson 4417 Oakwood Drive, Apt. 1115 HCDE 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 1161 W. 40th Street 
 423-894-3151 Chattanooga, TN 37409 
  423-209-5400 
 
Corina E. Ross 3271 Deerwood Lane Self Employed 
 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 Same 
 423-316-1807 Same 
  Same 
 
Charlie L. Ross 1124 John Ross Rd. The UPS Store # 1995 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 2288 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 154 
 423-637-4733 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 
 
Kimberly N. Sanchez 83 Agappa Lane Bank of America 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1945 Northpoint Blvd. 
 702-417-4685 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-752-1235 
 
Robert Sanders 114 Ridgeside Road The UPS Store 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 3712 Ringgold Road 
 423-718-3107 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-624-7511 
 
Candie Sane 488 River Rd. Prestige Cars 
 Chatsworth, GA 30705 2138 Chapman Rd. 
 706-517-1983 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-8800 
 
Patricia E. Schild 9702 Ricole Trail N/A 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 N/A 
 423-667-9574 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Anthony Todd Schroder 1619 S. Clayton Avenue JD Helton Roofing Co. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 2500 East 37th St. 
 423-867-0042 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-867-4400 
 
Nikisha D. Sexton 1055 Tiftonia View Road A Veterans Bonding Co. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 615 Walnut Street, Ste. 200 
 423-863-7201 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-1330 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6

 
Diethra Seymour 5220 Kellogg Creek Trail, Apt. 116 Redemption Point Church 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3831 Ooltewah-Ringgold Rd. 
 302-983-6110 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-855-7321 
 
Aleetra Shaw-Rice 4817 Northwind Dr. Southeast TN Development 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 1000 Riverfront Pkway 
 423-364-3396 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-424-4235 
 
Dana M. Smith 5317 Village Garden Dr. Walden Security 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 100 E. 10th St. 
 423-504-5990 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-702-8253 
 
Gail W. Spaulding 6310 BarShore Dr. Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 832 Georgia Ave, Ste. 1200 
 423-344-2291 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-6600 
 
Blake E. Stephens 2210 Red Tail Lane Stephens Construction 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 4470 Pinnacle Lane 
 423-595-2250 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-892-3299 
 
Sheila Stevens 206 8th Street NW Pioneer Title Agency, Inc. 
 Fort Payne, AL 35967 513 Georgia Avenue 
 256-996-8400 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-756-8221 
 
Sarah Stokes 6853 Longview Rd. Berry Construction Co, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2525 Broad St. 
 423-595-1220 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-267-2234 
 
Kalenda V. Towner 7604 Standifer Gap Rd. Suntrust Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 3535 Brainerd Rd. 
 601-678-8028 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-242-1197 
 
Theresa G. Ulrey 6435 Davis Hill Rd. Phillips Contractors & Mgmt. 
 Harrison, TN 37341 3903 Volunteer Dr, Bldg. B 
 423-802-1857 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-954-8827 
 
Amanda Waddle 47 Fran Lane, Apt. 24 Stansell Electric 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 4325 Jersey Pike, Bldg. A 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-805-7663 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JUNE 3, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 7

 
Rosemary Wensel 912 Stone Crest Circle River Associates Investments 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 633 Chesnut St, Ste. 1640 
 423-510-9246 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-755-0888 
 
Michael L. West 900 Mtn. Creek Rd, Apt. R322 Retired 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 N/A 
 423-356-1883 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Mollie B. White 335 Upper Firetower Rd. Spears, Moore, Rebman, et al. 
 Sequatchie, TN 37374 801 Broad St, 6th Floor 
 423-619-9907 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7000 
 
Rhonda G. Wright 723 Carden Avenue Knight & Hooper, PLLC 
 Rossville, GA 30741 P.O. Box 11583 
 423-902-2722 Chattanooga, TN 37401 
  423-267-1158 
 
Amy Wysong 1002 Roselawn Dr. N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 N/A 
 423-309-2338 N/A 
  N/A 
 





No. 615-2 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SAITECH, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT 
UNIT PRICING, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 
TERM, BEGINNING JUNE 3, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 2, 2016, FOR DELL LATITUDE 14 
RUGGED LAPTOP COMPUTERS AMOUNTING TO $2,420.43 EACH FOR THE SHERIFF’S 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 
pricing, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term for Dell 
Latitude 14 Rugged laptop computers for the Sheriff’s Department; and, 

WHEREAS, the bid from Saitech, Inc. amounting to $2,420.43 each was considered to be the 
lowest and best bid; and, 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 
the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the bid of Saitech, Inc. for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning June 3, 2015 through June 
2, 2016, for Dell Latitude 14 Rugged laptop computers amounting to $2,420.43 each for the Sheriff’s 
Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 3, 2015 
Date 

































No. 615-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG THE CITY 
OF RIDGESIDE, THE COUNTY TRUSTEE, AND HAMILTON COUNTY RELATIVE TO 
THE COLLECTION OF THE CITY OF RIDGESIDE SANITATION FEES 
 
WHEREAS,  T.C.A. §§ 5-1-113, 5-1-114 and 12-9-101 et seq. provides for Interlocal 
   agreements and Interlocal cooperation; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Ridgeside has levied a Sanitation Fee on the property  
   receiving sanitation services; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the County Trustee presently collects the property taxes which the  
   County levies on the property owner(s); and 
 
WHEREAS,  the County assists the Trustee in the collection of those taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS,   it would be mutually beneficial to all parties,  to collect that fee 
   through the Trustee’s Office simultaneously with the collection of  
   property taxes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
   That Hamilton County enters into the attached Interlocal Agreement 
   between the County Trustee and the City of Ridgeside, the County  
   Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such papers are necessary to 
   accomplish the same. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY. TENNESSEE, by and through its TRUSTEE 

AND THE CITY OF RIDGESIDE 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as "Agreement") made and 

entered into by and between I lAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, acting through its County 

Trustee, (hereinafter referred to as "Trustee") and the CITY OF RIDGESIDE, acting through its 

Mayor (hereinafter referred to as "City"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, T.C.A. $85-1-1 13,5-1-1 14 and 12-9-101 et seq. provide for Interlocal 

Agreements and Interlocal Cooperation; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Ridgeside has initiated sanitation and on all property owners and, 

WHEREAS, the County Trustee presently collects property taxes by billing property 

owners annually; and 

WHEREAS, it would be mutually beneficial to all parties and for the convenience of the 

property owner(s) of Ridgeside to pay these fees through the County Trustee's Office. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the mutual obligations 

assumed herein, the patties hereby agree as follows: 

1. General Purpose. The general purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the 

collection of Sanitation Fees that is separately levied by the City. 

2. Definition of Terms: For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms defined in this 

article shall have the meanings given them. 
 

a) City - The City of Ridgeside, Tennessee, a municipal corporation. 

b) Mayor - The person then and there occupying the Office of Mayor. 

c) County - Hamilton County, a constitutional County of the State of Tennessee. 

17104 OW0O01/KJF-22OI329 2 



d) County Trustee - The person then and there occupying the Office of Hamilton 

County 

e) Sanitation Fees - The fees authorized by and adopted by the Ridgeside City 

Commission on or about April 14,2015. 

3.       Collection of Sanitation Fees. The County Trustee shall administer the Sanitation 

Fees collection on behalf of the City. The County Trustee shall be responsible for the collection of 

the Sanitation Fees and shall place the proceeds of each such fee in a separate bookkeeping 

account. The County Trustee shall remit to the Mayor by the tenth (10th) day of the month, all 

City Sanitation Fees, which were collected by preceding month. Nothing herein shall preclude the 

application of debits or credits necessary to correct any errors as to any fee payments, which were 

previously remitted to the City. The Ridgeside Sanitation Fees will be added to the current 

property tax bill and will be payable without penalty for Ridgeside taxpayers October through 

February. 

The City of Ridgeside shall no later than August 1,2015 and each August thereafter for 

the duration of this Agreement set the rate, the rate/amount to be placed on the property tax bill as 

Sanitation Fees for residential consumers. In the event that the City of Ridgeside should change 

the Sanitation Fees rate/amount, notification of such change in the rate of the Sanitation Fees 

shall be sent to the County Trustee no later than August 31,2015 and each August 31 st thereafter 

for the duration of this Agreement. If such notification is not sent, or if the City has not changed 

the rate from the previous year, the Trustee shall cause the rate of the previous year to be placed 

on the property tax bill. 

The Trustee shall cause to be sent to the property owners for property located within the 

geographic boundaries of Ridgeside on their current property bill the Sanitation Fees in the 

2 
17104 OOttOOI/KJP-2201329 2 



amount that the City has determined. The same shall be payable without penalty for the 

Ridgeside residents anytime from October 1st through the end of February each year for the 

duration of this Agreement. 

On March 1,2016, and each March 1" thereafter for the duration of this Agreement, those 

Sanitation Fees which have not been paid shall be considered delinquent. The Fees shall remain 

payable in the Trustee's Office until March 1,2017 in the same manner as property taxes and shall 

be returned to the City of Ridgeside for further collection by the City. These events shall occur 

simultaneously with the normal collection of property taxes. 

In the event a citizen makes a partial payment, the Trustee shall cause to have the 

payment credited to the Stormwater Fees, real property and then to the Sanitation Fees. 

Beginning in January 31,2016 and each January for the duration of this Agreement, the 

Trustee shall cause to have sent to the City an invoice in the amount of One Thousand Dollars (SI 

,000) for all costs associated with the collection of Sanitation Fees for the City of Ridgeside. The 

same shall be due within 30 days or no later than March 1,2016 and each March 1st thereafter 

for the duration of this Agreement. 

4. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of four (4) years 

beginning with the operative date of October 1,2015 and ending September 30,2019. 

5. Renewal. After the initial four (4) year term, the Agreement shall be renewable 

from year to year thereafter for the term October 1 through September 30. 

6. Right to Terminate. Notwithstanding the provisions defining the term and renewal 

of this Interlocal Agreement, either party may terminate this agreement upon giving a written 

notice to the other party prior to July 1 each year. 

3 
17104 0O/O0O1/KJF-220I329 2 



7. Compensation. The County's compensation for these services under the 

Agreement shall be One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per annum for the collection of Sanitation 

Fees. Invoice for the collection of Sanitation Fees will be mailed to the City in January of each 

year and will be payable within thirty (30) days. 

The City agrees that it shall disburse from its General Fund of the City the above flat fees as 

charged by the County Trustee so that the City shall receive all of the proceeds from the 

Sanitation Fees collected by the County Trustee without reduction because of any other fee or 

commission. 

8. Notice to the City. The County shall give immediate notice to the City in the 

event that a claim is made by any party, which in any manner challenges the collection of the 

Sanitation Fees. The County shall also forward to the Mayor any correspondence from any party, 

which suggests that such lawsuit might be contemplated or any City Sanitation Fees is paid 

under protest. The County Trustee shall be notified by the City of any adjustment or settlement 

with any taxpayer, who has paid the City Sanitation Fees. 

The County Trustee shall notify the City at the time of turnover notice that any party 

subject to the City Sanitation Fees has filed for protection under the Federal Bankruptcy laws, or 

there is any filing for receivership or action in state court indicating insolvency. 

9. Audit. The County shall audit the list which was compiled by the City of 

Ridgeside in accordance with state requirements as part of its regular audit process and report the 

findings or exceptions of the audits on a regular basis to the Mayor for compliance with 

collections, revenues and payments. 

The City shall have the right during normal business hours to review the collections and to 

receive and/or audit the books of the County with respect to accounting for any revenues 

4 
17104_00'OOOI/KJF-2201329_2 



received or payments which have been made to the County with respect to the City Sanitation 

Fees. 

3 
17104 00/C001/KJF-2201329 2 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their respective names to be affixed 

by their duly authorized officers on this ____ day of ________________ , 2015. 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

By: ___________________________________  

Jim Coppinger, Hamilton County Mayor 

By: ___________________________________  

Bill Hullander, Hamilton County Trustee 

R1DGESIDE, TENNESSEE 

 

 

6 
17104JW0001/KJF-2201329.2 

 



 

 

No. 615-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH SUN LIFE 
FINANCIAL FOR REINSURANCE FOR THE COUNTY’S GROUP MEDICAL PLAN AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for reinsurance for the 

County’s group medical plan for a one year contract with two additional one (1) year 
renewals and approved on Resolution 613-40; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the second year of the contract with Sun Life Financial expires on June 30, 2015; 

and, 
 
WHEREAS, the coverage continues to include an annual specific deductible of $275,000 at a cost 

of $40.28 per employee per month for the July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 plan 
year; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the group medical plan is under a self-funded arrangement and it is in the best 

interest of the County to purchase reinsurance for catastrophic losses under this 
renewal plan; and,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the contract renewal with Sun Life Financial for reinsurance for the County’s group medical plan 
is hereby accepted, said proposal being in the best interest of the County, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 





 

 

No. 615-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A $49,425 AGREEMENT 
WITH BARGE WAGGONER SUMNER AND CANNON, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
TO CREATE A MOBILE DEVICE APP FOR INTERACTIVE DISPLAYS ON THE NEW 
EXTENTION OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the National Park Service (NPS) has awarded Hamilton County a grant for interactive 

signage utilizing computer technology to enrich the public’s experience on the new 
extension of the Tennessee Riverwalk; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the smartphone and tablet app will provide the public a better understanding of the 

historical and environmental significance of the areas traversed along the route of the 
Riverwalk; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  the NPS grant will be coordinated by Barge Waggoner Sumner and Cannon, Inc. 

which was awarded a contract in  August 2010 to provide design and engineering 
services for the Riverwalk Extension project, as well as interactive signage and 
interpretative exhibit provisions in the project’s public bid notice of June 12, 2014; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS,    the NPS grant of $24,712 will be matched with $24,713 from private donations, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract in the amount of $49,425 with Barge 
Waggoner Sumner and Cannon, Inc. for professional services to develop and implement a 
mobile device app for interactive displays to provide enhanced educational and interpretive 
exhibits along the new Riverwalk extension to Lookout Mountain. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 615-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHIELDS ELECTRONIC SUPPLY, INC. AND 
ACCREDITED LOCK SUPPLY COMPANY FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR DOOR 
ACCESS MATERIALS FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 5, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 4, 2016, FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing for door access materials for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Shields Electronic Supply, Inc. and Accredited Lock Supply Company 

were considered to be the lowest and best overall bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Shields Electronic Supply, Inc. and Accredited Lock Supply Company for contract unit 
pricing for door access materials for the period of June 5, 2015, through June 4, 2016, for the 
Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best overall bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



































 

 

No. 615-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION FROM SPORTS, PLAY, AND ACTIVE RECREATION 
FOR KIDS (SPARK) FOR THE PURCHASE OF SPARK PE INSTRUCTIONAL CURRICULUM PACKETS 
FOR THE STEP ONE PROGRAM TO BE USED BY HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOLS AMOUNTING TO 
$17,118.60 FOR THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 
THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received from the company SPARK for the purchase of SPARK-PE elementary 

physical education curriculum by the Health Department’s Step ONE Program for 
implementation in Hamilton County Schools  in the 15-16 school term; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  this curriculum is currently in use in a limited number of Hamilton County Elementary Schools; 

and, 
 
WHEREAS, this program will help provide a comprehensive approach to meeting the physical education 

needs of students Pre-K and Kindergarten through Sixth Grade; and, 
 
WHEREAS, SPARK is the sole source producer and distributor of SPARK instructional materials, 

professional development, and content-matched equipment items; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this program is being funded through the CDC Chronic Disease and School Health 1305 Grant. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from SPARK for the purchase of SPARK PE instructional curriculum packets for the Step 
ONE Program in Hamilton County Schools amounting to $17,118.60 for the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Health Department is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 615-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF APRIL 1, 2015, THROUGH APRIL 30, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between April 1, 2015, through April 30, 2015.  
 
 April 6, 2015, $12,372.13 for 7,983 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.54981 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 April 6, 2015, $5,366.36 for 3,003 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.7870 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 April 7, 2015, $1,229.39 for 615 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.9990 per 

gallon from Collins Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 April 16, 2015, $14,743.54 for 8,483 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.73801 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 April 16, 2015, $14,731.37 for 8,476 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.73801 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 April 20, 2015, $13,239.37 for 7,031 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.8830 per gallon from 

Parman Lubricants.  
  
 April 28, 2015, $14,166.06 for 7,382 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.9190 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 April 30, 2015, $14,387.76 for 7,367 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.953001 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
    
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 



 

 

 

 

ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 615-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SAITECH, INC. FOR A ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT, 
BEGINNING JUNE 3, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 2, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR 
ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, FOR HP PRINTERS  FOR THE INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a one (1) year contract, 

with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term for HP printers for 
the Information Technology Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Saitech, Inc. was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projets funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Saitech for a one (1) year contract, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one 
(1) year term, for HP printers for the Information Technology Services Department is hereby accepted, 
said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 

































 

 

No. 615-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SOUTHERN ATHLETIC FIELDS, INC. FOR ONE (1) 
YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JUNE 3, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 2, 2016, WITH THE 
OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, FOR INFIELD CLAY 
MIX FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year  contract 

pricing, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for infield 
clay mix for the Recreation Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Southern Athletic Fields, Inc. was considered to be the lowest and best 

bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the 

operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Southern Athletic Fields, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning June 3, 2015 
through June 2, 2016, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for infield clay 
mix for the Recreation Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, 
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























 

 

No. 615-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $188,799.05 WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

            COURTS COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM WITH A CONTRACT 
            PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 01, 2015 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Courts Community Services Program contract with 

     TDOT provides litter and trash collection on right-of-ways of area state  
                                    highways; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the program provides a valuable alternative to incarceration; and, 
    
 

WHEREAS, no match is required for this agreement; 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY  
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
   The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract, a copy of 
   which is available on request, in the amount of $188,799.05 with the Tennessee 
                                    Department of Transportation for the Hamilton County Courts Community  
                                    Service Program with a contract period beginning July 01, 2015 and ending  
                                    June 30, 2016. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND 
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-12 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUALIFICATIONS AND FEE SCHEDULES OF AMEC ENVIRONMENTAL 
& INFRASTRUCTURE INC., GEOSERVICES, LLC, K.S. WARE & ASSOCIATES LLC, MARION 
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC., MC2 ENGINEERS, MORELAND ALTOBELLI ASSOCIATES, INC., PDM 
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, LLC, S&ME, INC., STANTEC CONSULTING, TERRACON, AND THOMPSON 
ENGINEERING, FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JULY 3, 2015 THROUGH JULY 2, 
2016, FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, Request for Qualifications (RFQ) were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year 
contract pricing for geotechnical, environmental, facilities, construction materials engineering and 
testing services and related professional services; and, 

WHEREAS, the qualifications of AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc., Geoservices, LLC, K.S. Ware & 
Associates, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., MC2 Engineers, Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., 
PDM Engineering Associates, LLC, S&ME, Inc., Stantec Consulting, Terracon, and Thompson 
Engineering, were evaluated and approved to perform geoenvironmental consulting services; and, 

WHEREAS, the fee schedules of AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc., Geoservices, LLC, K.S. Ware & 
Associates, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., MC2 Engineers, Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., 
PDM Engineering Associates, LLC, S&ME, Inc. Stantec Consulting, Terracon, and Thompson 
Engineering are accepted; and, 

WHEREAS, there will be sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the operating 
budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning department from bond proceeds 
(for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the qualifications of AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc., Geoservices, LLC, K.S. Ware & Associates, 
LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., MC2 Engineers, Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., PDM Engineering Associates, 
LLC, S&ME, Inc., Stantec Consulting, Terracon, and Thompson Engineering for one (1) year contract pricing, 
beginning July 3, 2015 through July 2, 2016, for geoenvironmental consulting services, are hereby approved and 
accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 3, 2015 
Date 









































 

 

No. 615-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF J&J CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE TRI-COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
STATION 3 AMOUNTING TO $2,833,700 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

Tri-Community Volunteer Fire Department Station 3; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from J&J Contractors, Inc. amounting to $2,833,700 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of J&J Contractors, Inc. for construction of the Tri-Community Volunteer Fire 
Department Station 3 amounting to $2,833,700 is hereby accepted; said bid being the lowest 
and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 615-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF 
HAMILTON COUNTY TO EXECUTE AND CREATE A STREAM AND WETLANDS 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT UPON PROPERTY JOINTLY-OWNED BY 
HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, DESIGNATING 
HAMILTON COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATION AS THE HOLDER OF SAID 
EASEMENT LOCATED WITHIN THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) and the City of Chattanooga (City) jointly own 

certain property located at Enterprise South Industrial Park (ESIP), identified 
by State Tax Map No. 130-001 (a portion of) more particularly described in 
Attachment 1 of said easement (Protected Property) attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County Parks and Recreation (Holder) is an entity qualified to hold 

conservation easements and is a political subdivision of the State of Tennessee 
whose purpose it is to preserve, enhance, and conserve the aesthetic, scientific, 
charitable and educational purposes of Protected Property; and,  

  
WHEREAS, the Protected Property possesses significant ecological values of aesthetic and 

environmental benefit to the people of the State of Tennessee and the United 
States and of great importance to the City and County; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) and the Tennessee 

Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) have approved the 
Protected Property for use as wetland mitigation, and will oversee the creation 
and maintenance of this wetland; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County and City desire to convey to the Holder a conservation easement in 

order to conserve and protect the wetlands, and in order that the Protected 



 

 

 

 

Property shall remain in its natural condition forever; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Holder agrees to honor the intentions of the County and the City as stated 

herein and to conserve and protect in perpetuity the conservation values of the 
Protected Property in accordance with the terms of this Wetlands Conservation 
Easement for the benefit of this generation and generations to come.   
  . 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
  That the County Mayor is hereby authorized on behalf of Hamilton County  
  to execute and create a Wetlands Conservation Easement with Hamilton  
  County Parks and Recreation being the Holder of said easement on property  

(Protected Property) jointly-owned by Hamilton County and the City of 
Chattanooga identified as State Tax Map No. 130-001 (a portion of) located at 
Enterprise South Industrial Park, in order to conserve and protect the wetlands 
and in order that the Protected Property shall remain in its natural condition 
forever according to certain limitations and affirmative obligations more 
particularly described in the easement agreement and drawing, copies of which 
are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference thereto as though fully 
and completely copied verbatim herein.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



Holder: Hamilton County, Tennessee State Tax Map No.:  130   
 208 Courthouse Parcel No.:  001 
 201 East 7th Street  
 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
 
 

STREAM & WETLAND CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
 
 

THIS INDENTURE, is made this ________ day of ________________, 20_____, by the  
City of Chattanooga, a Tennessee municipal corporation, located at City Hall, Suite 100, 101 E. 11th 
Street, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 and Hamilton County, Tennessee, a political subdivision of 
the State of Tennessee, located at 208 Courthouse, 201 East 7th Street, Chattanooga, Tennessee 
37402 (“Grantor”), and in favor of Hamilton County, Tennessee,  c/o Hamilton County Parks & 
Recreation located at 2318 North Gold Point Circle, Hixson, Tennessee 37343 (“Holder”). 
 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property located in Hamilton 
County, State of Tennessee, more particularly described in Attachment 1 hereto which is 
incorporated and made apart hereof as if fully set forth herein (“Protected Property”); 
 

WHEREAS, Holder is an entity qualified to hold conservation easements and is a political 
subdivision of the State of Tennessee whose purpose is to preserve, enhance, and conserve the 
Protected Property for aesthetic, scientific, charitable and educational purposes; and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Protected Property possesses significant ecological values of aesthetic and 
environmental benefit to the people of the State of Tennessee and the United States, and of great 
importance to the Grantor and the Holder; 
  

WHEREAS, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) is responsible for 
implementing Section 404, of the Clean Water Act, and overseeing the creation of the Regional 
Stormwater Detention project, and The Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
(TDEC) is also overseeing the creation and maintenance of this stream relocation and wetland 
creation will therefore retain Third Party Rights of Enforcement for this Conservation Easement. 
 

WHEREAS, the Corps and TDEC have approved the Protected Property for use as stream 
and wetland mitigation, the purpose of which is to create 3,650 linear feet of stream and a minimum 
of five acres of wetland pursuant to Section 404 and Section 401 of the Clean Water Act and Section 
10 of the Rivers and Harbor Act.  

 
WHEREAS, Grantor desires to convey to the Holder a conservation easement, thereby 

placing certain limitations and affirmative obligations on the Protected Property for the protection of 
the stream and wetlands, and in order that the Protected Property shall remain in its natural 
condition, forever; 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor desires by this instrument to convey to Holder the right to conserve and 

protect the conservation and environmental values of the property in perpetuity; 
 
WHEREAS, the conservation and environmental values of the property include: stream 

restoration of native, self-sustaining habitat representative of the area; improved energy dissipation; 
improved sediment transportation; nutrient cycling; improved biological functions; increased 
vegetative diversity; and improved habitat for mammals and resident and migratory birds. 

 
WHEREAS, Holder agrees by accepting this conveyance to honor the intentions of the 

Grantor stated herein and to conserve and protect in perpetuity the conservation values of the 
Protected Property in accordance with the terms of this Conservation Easement for the benefit of this 
generation and the generations to come; 
 

WHEREAS, the term “natural condition” shall mean the condition of the Protected Property 
at the time of this grant, and as created, restored, enhanced, and preserved pursuant to the DA Permit 
2003-01631 and TDEC ARAP NRS 13.074, and shall be evidenced in part by a surveyed plat of the 
Protected Property showing all relevant property lines, and major, distinct natural features such as 



waters of the United States, on file with the Corps and TDEC and Holder, aerial photographs of the 
Protected Property taken as close as possible to the date the donation is made, and after completion 
of the creation, restoration, enhancement and preservation activities required by the Permits; and on-
site photographs taken at appropriate locations on the Protected Property, including of major natural 
features.  
 

WHEREAS, Grantor and Holder agree that third-party rights of enforcement shall be held by 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Nashville District (“Corps,” to include any successor agencies), 
and by the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation, (TDEC) and may be exercised 
through the appropriate enforcement agencies of the United States, and that these rights are in 
addition to, and do not limit, the rights of enforcement under Department of the Army Permit No. 
2003-01631and TDEC ARAP NRS 13.074, or any permit or certification issued by the Third-Party 
to Grantor in regards to the Protected Property; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for the foregoing consideration, and in further consideration of the 
restrictions, rights, and agreements herein, Grantor hereby conveys to Holder, its successors and 
assigns, forever and in perpetuity, a conservation easement over the Protected Property more 
particularly described in Attachment 1. 
 

A. PURPOSE 
 
It is the purpose of this Conservation Easement to assure that the Protected Property will be retained 
forever in a natural state, that the scenic and natural character of the property will be maintained as it 
currently exists (preserved), and as created, restored and enhanced pursuant to the permits, and to 
prevent any use of the Protected Property that will impair or interfere with the conservation values of 
the Protected Property. Grantor intends that grant of this Conservation Easement will assure that the 
Protected Property will be used only for such activities as are consistent with the conservation 
purpose of this easement.  
 

B. DURATION 
 
This Conservation Easement shall be perpetual, in gross, run with the land and be binding on 
Grantor’s heirs, successors, administrators, assigns, lessees, or other occupiers and users, forever. 
 

C. RIGHTS OF THE HOLDER 
 
To accomplish the purpose of this Conservation Easement, the following rights are conveyed to the 
Holder and the Third-Party: 
 
1.   General.  The Holder and the Corps and TDEC shall have the right to conserve and protect 
the conservation values of the Protected Property in perpetuity. The Holder and the Corps and TDEC 
shall have the right to prevent any activity or use of the Protected Property that is inconsistent with 
the purpose of the Conservation Easement, and to require the restoration of such areas or features of 
the Property that may be damaged by any inconsistent activity or use, pursuant to the remedies set 
forth in Section F herein. 
 
2. Rights of Access and Entry.  Holder and the Corps and TDEC shall have the right to enter 
and go upon the Protected Property for purposes of inspection, and to take actions necessary to verify 
compliance with the Restrictions as set out herein.  Holder and Corps and TDEC shall also have the 
rights of visual access and view, and to enter and go upon the Protected Property for purposes of 
making scientific or educational observations and studies, and taking samples, in such a manner as 
will not disturb the quiet enjoyment of the Protected Property by Grantor. However, this 
Conservation Easement conveys no right of access or entry by the general public to any portion of 
the Protected Property. 
 

     D.  PROHIBITED AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES 
 
Any activity upon, or use of, the Protected Property inconsistent with the purposes of this 
Conservation Easement is prohibited. The following activities and uses are expressly prohibited:  
 



1. General.  There shall be no filling, flooding, excavating, mining or drilling; no dumping of 
materials; and, no alteration of the topography in any manner except as specifically set forth herein 
and as specifically provided for in the DA and TDEC permits. 
 
2. Waters and Wetlands.  There shall be no draining, dredging, damming or impounding; no 
changing the grade or elevation, impairing the flow or circulation of waters, reducing the reach of 
waters; and no other discharge or activity requiring a permit under applicable clean water or water 
pollution control laws and regulations, except as specifically set forth herein and as specifically 
provided for in the DA and TDEC permits. 
 
3. Trees/Vegetation.  There shall be no clearing, burning, cutting or destroying of trees or 
vegetation, except as expressly authorized in the Reserved Rights; there shall be no planting or 
introduction of non-native or exotic species of trees or vegetation except as specifically set forth 
herein and as specifically provided for in the DA and TDEC permits. 
 
4. Uses.  No industrial or commercial activity shall be undertaken or allowed. 
 
5. Structures.  There shall be no construction, erection, or placement of buildings or billboards, 
nor any additions to existing structures except as specifically set forth herein. 
 
6. New Roads.  There shall be no construction of new roads, trails, or walkways except as 
specifically set forth herein. 
 
7.  Use of Off Road Vehicles.  There shall be no use of off road vehicles, 4-wheel drive 
vehicles, all terrain vehicles or similar vehicles except on existing roads and trails and except as 
necessary to manage the Property. 

 
8. Utilities.  There shall be no construction or placement of utilities or related facilities except 
as specifically set forth herein. 
 
9. Pest Control.  There shall be no application of pesticides or biological controls, including for 
problem vegetation, without prior written approval from the Corps, TDEC and Holder. 
 
10. Other Prohibitions.  Any other use of, or activity on, the Protected Property which is or may 
become inconsistent with the purposes of this grant, the preservation of the Protected Property 
substantially in its natural condition, or the protection of its environmental systems, is prohibited. 
 

E.  GRANTOR’S RESERVED RIGHTS 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing Restrictions, Grantor reserves for Grantor, its successors and assigns 
the following Reserved Rights, which may be exercised upon providing prior written notice to 
Holder and to Third-Party, except where expressly provided otherwise: 
 
1. Grounds Maintenance.  Landscaping by the Grantor to prevent severe erosion or damage to 
the Protected Property or portions thereof, or significant detriment to existing or permitted uses, is 
allowed, provided that such landscaping is generally consistent with preserving the natural condition 
of the Protected Property. 
 
2. Forest Management.  Harvesting and management of timber by Grantor is limited to the 
extent necessary to protect the natural environment in areas where the forest is damaged by natural 
forces such as fire, flood, storm, insects or infectious organisms or is otherwise required by sound 
management practices.  Such timber harvest and management shall be carried out in accordance with 
Best Management Practices approved by the Tennessee Forestry Commission or successor agency, as 
amended. 
 
3. Recreation.  Grantor reserves the right to allow any outdoor, non-commercial recreational 
activities, including hunting and fishing, with cumulatively very small impacts, and which are 
consistent with the continuing natural condition of the Protected Property.  No written notice is 
required. 
 



4. Future Utility Crossings.  Grantor reserves the right to construct future utility crossings.  All 
future utility crossings will be installed by bore and casing and all excavation will occur outside the 
easement area.  Written approval will be required from the Corps, TDEC, and Holder prior to their 
construction. 
 
5. Future Vehicular, Railroad, and Pedestrian Modifications.  Grantor reserves the right to 
modify the existing infrastructure adjacent to the Property.  Such modifications may be installed at 
the edge of the easement.  Written approval from the Corps, TDEC, ands Holder for such 
modifications outside the easement will not be required. 
 
6. Road, Drainage, and Utility Maintenance.  Grantor reserves the right to maintain existing 
roads, drainage or utilities.  Maintenance shall be limited to: removal or pruning of dead or 
hazardous vegetation; application of permeable materials (e.g., sand, gravel, crushed) necessary to 
correct or impede erosion; grading; replacement of culverts, water control structures, or bridges; and, 
maintenance of roadside ditches; and replacement of drainage and utilities within existing easements. 
 Grantor will obtain necessary TDEC or Corps approvals for any maintenance activities that propose 
to disturb waters of the State or U.S.. 
 
7. Other Reserved Rights.  Grantor and Holder reserve the right to conduct actions which are 
essential and necessary for the preservation and maintenance of the Protected Property, even if 
generally prohibited by the Restrictions, so long as they are not inconsistent with the conservation 
purposes of this grant, the preservation of the Protected Property substantially in its natural 
condition, and the protection of its environmental systems.  However, any invasive, destructive, or 
similar measures that cause or may cause disturbances to wildlife, vegetation, soils, or hydrology, 
must be approved by Holder, Corps and TDEC in advance.   
 
8. Rights of Grantor.  The Corps and TDEC have approved the Protected Property for use as 
compensatory mitigation, the purpose of which is to create 3,650 linear feet of stream and five acres 
of wetland.  This will be accomplished by the creation and preservation in perpetuity of the Protected 
Property.  In addition to any other provision contained herein, the terms and provisions of the permits 
shall be applicable.  In the event there is any inconsistency between this Easement and the terms and 
conditions of the permits, the Corps and TDEC shall govern. 
 

F.  ENFORCEMENT 
 
1. Notice of Violation; Corrective Action.   If Holder or the Corps or TDEC determines there 
has been a breach or violation of the terms of this Conservation Easement, by Grantor; the Corps, 
TDEC and/or Holder shall give written notice to the Grantor of such violation and demand corrective 
action sufficient to cure the violation, and where the violation involves injury to the Property 
resulting from any use or activity inconsistent with the purposes of this Easement, to restore the 
portion of the Property so injured to its prior condition in accordance with a plan to be approved by 
the Holder and Corps and TDEC.  
 
2. Injunctive Relief.  If the Grantor fails to cure the violation within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of such notice to thereof, or under circumstances where the violation cannot reasonably be 
cured within a thirty (30) day period, fails to begin curing said violation within the thirty (30) day 
period, or fails to continue diligently to cure such violation until finally cured, the Corps, TDEC 
and/or Holder may undertake such actions, including legal proceedings, as are necessary to effect 
such corrective action, including to enjoin the violation, ex parte as necessary, by temporary or 
permanent injunction, and to require the restoration of the Property to the condition that existed prior 
to any such injury. 
 
3. Damages.  Corps, TDEC and Holder shall be entitled to recover damages for violation of the 
terms of this Conservation Easement or injury to any conservation values protected by this Easement, 
including, without limitation, damages for the loss of scenic, aesthetic, or environmental values.  
  
4. Costs of Enforcement.  The costs of a breach or violation, correction or restoration, 
including the Corps, TDEC and/or Holder expenses, court costs, and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid by 



Grantor, unless Grantor ultimately prevails in a judicial enforcement action, in which case each party 
shall bear their own costs. 
  
5. Forbearance.  Enforcement shall be at the discretion of the Corps, TDEC and/or Holder, and 
any forbearance to exercise rights under this Easement shall not be deemed or construed to be a 
waiver of such terms or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term of this Easement or 
of any of the Holder, Corps or TDEC’s rights under this Easement.  No omission or delay in the 
exercise of any rights or remedies shall constitute a waiver of any enforcement right, or in any way 
impair any right or remedy. 
 
6. General.  These enforcement rights are cumulative and are in addition to, and shall not limit, 
enforcement rights available under other provisions of law or equity, or under any applicable permit 
or certification. 
 
7. Events Beyond Grantor’s Control.  Nothing herein shall be construed to authorize the 
Corps, TDEC or Holder to institute any proceedings against Grantor for any changes to the Protected 
Property caused by acts of God or circumstances beyond the Grantor’s control such as earthquake, 
fire, flood, storm, war, civil disturbance, strike, the unauthorized acts of third persons, or similar 
causes. However, if the acts of God or circumstances beyond the Grantor’s control do not preclude 
the Grantor from maintaining the Protected Property in its natural condition without unreasonable 
expense, then it shall not be relieved of its obligations under this document. 
 
             G. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1. Transfer.  Sixty (60) day advance notification to the Nashville Corps District Engineer is 
required prior to any action being taken to void or modify this interest.  This includes transfer of title 
to, or establishment of any other legal claims over Protected Property. 
 
2. Obligations of Ownership.  Grantor is responsible for any real estate taxes, assessments, 
fees, or charges levied upon the Protected Property.  Grantor shall keep the Protected Property free of 
any liens or other encumbrances for obligations incurred by Grantor.  Holder, Corps and TDEC shall 
not be responsible for any costs or liability of any kind related to the ownership, operation, insurance, 
upkeep, or maintenance of the Protected Property, except as expressly provided herein.  Nothing 
herein shall relieve the Grantor of the obligation to comply with federal, state or local laws, 
regulations and permits that may apply to the exercise of the Reserved Rights. 
 
3. Extinguishment.  In the event that changed conditions render impossible the continued use 
of the Protected Property for the conservation purposes, this Conservation Easement may be 
extinguished, in whole or in part, by judicial proceeding.  The Nashville Corps District Engineer 
must be notified at least sixty (60) days prior to such extinguishment. 
 
4. Eminent Domain.    If all or any part of the Property is taken by exercise of the power of 
eminent domain or acquired by purchase in lieu of condemnation, whether by public, Corporate, or 
other authority, so as to terminate this Easement, in whole or in part, Grantor and Grantee shall act 
jointly to recover the full value of the interests in the Property subject to the taking or in lieu of 
purchase and all direct or incidental damages resulting there from. This Conservation Easement 
constitutes a real property interest immediately vested in Holder. In the event that all or a portion of 
this Protected Property is sold, exchanged, or involuntarily converted following the extinguishment 
or the exercise of eminent domain, Holder shall be entitled to the fair market value of this 
Conservation Easement. Holder shall use its share of the proceeds in a manner consistent with the 
purposes of this Conservation Easement. 
 
5. Notification.  Any notice, request for approval, or other communication required under this 
Conservation Easement shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the following 
addresses (or such address as may be hereafter specified by notice pursuant to this paragraph): 
 



To Grantor: City of Chattanooga 
 City Hall, Suite 100 
 101 E. 11th Street 
 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402  
 
To Grantor: Hamilton County 
 208 Courthouse 
 201 East 7th Street 
 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402  
 
To Holder: Hamilton County, Tennessee 
 c/o Hamilton County Parks & Recreation 
 2318 North Gold Point Circle 
 Hixson, Tennessee 37343 
   
To Corps: U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Regulatory Branch 
 3701 Bell Road 
 Nashville, Tennessee 37214  
 
To TDEC: Tennessee Department of Environment & Conservation 
 Division of Water Resources 
 William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower 
 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor 
 Nashville, Tennessee 37243 
 
6. Assignment.  This Conservation Easement is transferable, but only to a qualified holder and 
subject to the approval of the Corps, TDEC and Grantor.  As a condition of such transfer, the 
transferee shall agree to all of the restrictions, rights, and provisions herein, and to continue to carry 
out the purposes of this Conservation Easement.  Assignments shall be accomplished by amendment 
of this Conservation Easement under Paragraph 9. 
 
7. Failure of Holder.  If at any time Holder ceases to be a qualified holder and if, within a 
reasonable period of time after the occurrence of one of these events, the Holder fails to make an 
assignment pursuant to Paragraph 6, then the Holder’s interest shall become vested in another 
qualified holder in accordance with an appropriate proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
8. Subsequent Transfer.  Grantor agrees to incorporate the terms of this Conservation 
Easement in any deed or other legal instrument, which transfers any interest in all, or a portion of the 
Protected Property.  Grantor agrees to provide written notice of such transfer at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the date of transfer.  The failure of Grantor to comply with this paragraph shall not impair the 
validity or enforceability of this Conservation Easement. 
 
9. Amendment.  This Conservation Easement may be amended, but only in writing signed by 
all parties hereto, and provided such amendment does not affect the qualification of this 
Conservation Easement or the status of the Holder under any applicable laws, and is consistent with 
the conservation purposes of this grant. 
 
10. Severability.  Should a court of competent jurisdiction find any separable part of this 
Conservation Easement void or unenforceable, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
11. Warranty.  Grantor warrants that it owns the Protected Property in fee simple, and that the 
Grantor either owns all interests in the Protected Property which may be impaired by the granting of 
this Conservation Easement or that there are no outstanding mortgages, tax liens, encumbrances, or 
other interests in the Protected Property which have not been expressly subordinated to this 
Conservation Easement.  Grantor warrants that there is no pending or threatened litigation in any way 



affecting, involving, or relating to the Protected Property. Grantor further warrants that Holder shall 
have the use of and enjoy all the benefits derived from and arising out of this Conservation 
Easement. 
 
12. No Extinguishment Through Merger.  Grantor and Holder agree that should the Holder, or 
any successor in interest to the Holder, come to own all of a portion of the fee interest in the 
Protected Property subject to this Conservation Easement, (i) said owner shall observe and be bound 
by the obligations and restrictions imposed upon the Protected Property by this Conservation 
Easement, (ii) this Conservation Easement shall not be extinguished through the doctrine of merger 
in whole or in part in view of the public interest in enforcement, and (iii) said owner shall promptly 
assign the Holder interest in the Conservation Easement to another entity or person  qualified to hold 
conservation easements.    
 
13. Recordation.  Grantor shall record this instrument in a timely fashion in the official records 
of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and shall re-record it as may be required to preserve this 
Conservation Easement. 
 
14.   Marking of Property.  The perimeter of the Protected Property shall at all times be plainly 
marked by permanent signs saying "Protected Area" or by an equivalent, permanent marking system. 
 Holder shall be permitted to place appropriate signage upon the Protected Property to identify its 
role as the long-term steward. 
 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, unto the Holder, its successors and assigns, forever.  The 
covenants agreed to and the terms, restrictions and purposes imposed as aforesaid, shall be binding 
upon Grantor, his personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns, and shall continue as a 
servitude running with the land in perpetuity with the property, so long as the terms and conditions set 
out herein are satisfied or maintained with respect to the subject property or any portion thereof and in 
the event any term or condition fails, then said property shall revert to Grantor, its successors or assigns. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Holder have executed this Conservation Easement. 
 



 GRANTOR:  City of Chattanooga, Tennessee 
 
 By:  _______________________________________ 
    
 Its: ____Mayor________________________________ 
 
 Attest: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 GRANTOR:  Hamilton County, Tennessee 
 
 By:  _______________________________________ 
    
 Its: ____Mayor________________________________ 
 
 Attest: _____________________________________ 
 
  
 HOLDER:  Hamilton County, Tennessee, c/o 

Hamilton County Parks & Recreation 
 
 By:  _______________________________________ 
    
 Its: ____Director________________________________ 
 
 Attest: _____________________________________ 
 
  
 
 
 
  

 
 
STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
HAMILTON COUNTY ) 
 
 Before me, the undersigned authority, Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, 

hereby certify that Andy Berke, Mayor of THE CITY CHATTANOOGA, who is known to me to be 

such official or with whom I am personally acquainted, has signed the foregoing instrument or 

acknowledged the same before under oath that, being informed of the contents of the Instrument, he, 

in his capacity as such official of the Mayor of  the City of Chattanooga, and with full authority, 

signed, executed, and delivered the same as the act of the City of Chattanooga. 

 
 GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____. 
 
 
    
[AFFIX NOTARY SEAL]  NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
HAMILTON COUNTY ) 
 
 The undersigned Notary Public, does hereby certify that Jim M. Coppinger, Mayor of 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE who is known to me to be such official or with whom I am 

personally acquainted, has signed the foregoing instrument or acknowledged the same before under 

oath that, being informed of the contents of the Instrument, he, in his capacity as such official of the 

Mayor of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and with full authority, signed, executed, and delivered the 

same as the act of Hamilton County, Tennessee. 

 
 GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____. 
 
 
    
[AFFIX NOTARY SEAL]  NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
HAMILTON COUNTY ) 
 
 The undersigned Notary Public, does hereby certify that 

_____________________________, Director of Hamilton County Parks & Recreation, who is 

known to me to be such official or with whom I am personally acquainted, has signed the foregoing 

instrument or acknowledged the same before under oath that, being informed of the contents of the 

Instrument, he, in his capacity as such official of Hamilton County Parks and Recreation, and with 

full authority, signed, executed, and delivered the same as the act of Hamilton County, Tennessee. 

 
 GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____. 
 
 
    
[AFFIX NOTARY SEAL]  NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document Prepared by: Hamilton County Engineering Department 
 1250 Market Street, Suite 3050 
 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402-2713 



STREAM & CONSERVATION EASEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

SURVEY DOCUMENTS 



















 

 

No. 615-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF NABCO ELECTRIC FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE HIXSON PIKE AND THRASHER PIKE TRAFFIC INTERSECTION SIGNALIZATION FOR 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $150,666.35 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 712-24 was approved by this Legislative Body on July 18, 2012 for 

Agreement No. 120085 with the Tennessee Department of Transportation for the 
improvement and signalization of the intersection at Hixson Pike (SR-319) and 
Thrasher Pike; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Nabco Electric amounting to $150,666.35 was considered to be the 

lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the construction contract is contingent upon approval by Tennessee Department of 

Transportation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, 80% of the cost will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Federal Highway 

Administration per Tennessee Department of Transportation Agreement No. 120085, 
and the remaining 20% of the cost will be funded by the County from bond proceeds. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Nabco Electric for the construction of the Hixson Pike and Thrasher Pike intersection  
signalization for an amount not to exceed $150,666.35 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest 
and best bid received, and the County Mayor is authorized to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 615-16 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 3, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE A “MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING” WITH THE RIVERCITY 
COMPANY RELATIVE TO PROPERTY OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) and the RiverCity Company (RiverCity) desire to 

work cooperatively in the successful City Center Plan and Downtown themes in 
Chattanooga; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County owns property located at 123 East 7th Street, identified as State Tax 
Map No. 145D-A-008, also known as the Mayfield Annex; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the Mayfield Annex is no longer suitable for the needs of the County 

Government and is underutilized; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that RiverCity is most capable in providing technical 

resources and marketing expertise for the facilitation of redevelopment of the 
Property; and, 

 
WHEREAS in cooperation with the County, it is desirable for RiverCity to prepare and 

issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the sale and redevelopment of the 
Property, review responses to the RFP and make recommendations for the most 
appropriate proposal, in accordance with the attached or similar “Memorandum 
of Understanding”; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Hamilton County to enter into the “Memorandum of 

Understanding” with RiverCity Company to further residential development in 
Downtown Chattanooga. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION  
ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

 

 

 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into and execute a 
“Memorandum of Understanding” with the RiverCity Company as set forth 
above, in accordance with the attached or similar agreement. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 3, 2015 

  
Date 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING     
 

1. Hamilton County (County) owns property identified as State Tax Map No. 145D A 008 
at 123 E. 7th Street (a.k.a., Mayfield Annex), bounded by Seventh Street and Walnut 
Street and consisting of approximately 0.15 acres (the Property). 

2. The RiverCity Company (RiverCity) provides technical resources for the facilitation of 
Downtown development and desires to see the Property redeveloped in a manner 
consistent with the overall City Center Plan and Downtown development themes. 
RiverCity agrees to provide its technical resources and marketing skills to accomplish 
this purpose. 

3. It is desirable to relocate any remaining County offices and employees so that the 
Property might be redeveloped in a manner consistent with other proposed uses as a part 
of the continued economic growth of the Downtown. In addition, the current facility is no 
longer useful for the needs of the County and is underutilized. The cost of repairing or 
demolishing the Property may necessitate significant expenditures of funds. For this 
reason, the County seeks to maximize the return on the Property and to minimize the 
inconvenience caused by repair, replacement and relocation. 

4. To accomplish these goals, the County will relocate any remaining offices to suitable 
replacement facilities, provide the funding, and will relocate in a timely manner so as to 
not disrupt day to day operations of remaining offices. 

5. The County has requested RiverCity to serve as their agent for purposes of 
redevelopment of the Property which will include contracting for an appraisal, marketing 
of the Property, development and issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the sale 
of the Property, review of responses to the RFP, and making recommendations to the 
County for the most appropriate redevelopment proposal. 

6. A negotiated redevelopment fee will be paid to RiverCity by the County only in the event 
that a proposal is accepted by the County and upon closing of the real estate transaction . 
The County reserves the right to approve or disapprove any transaction which affects 
their interest in the Property, including the terms and conditions thereof.  RiverCity will 
make only such recommendations concerning utilization of the Property as are consistent 
with plans and uses of the City Center Plan and Downtown development. 

7. The County understands that the primary objective of all parties is to develop the 
Property to its highest and best use. This will ensure the maximum increase in valuation 
of properties within the area thereby enhancing the returns on public investments. 

8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the Request for Proposals or to reject any and 
all proposals for any reason. It is expressly understood that the receipt of any response to 
the Request for Proposals and any recommendations made by RiverCity does not commit 
the parties to the sale of the Property. 

9. Any recommended proposal (sale of the Property) must be accepted by action taken by 
the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners. 

10. This document represents the current understandings of the parties. The parties recognize 
that future conditions may require changes in the understandings stated herein. It is 
understood that the County and RiverCity will work together in good faith to achieve 
these purposes. 


	6-3-15 Public Agenda
	615-_S_Minutes_May 13 2015 Recessed_1603_05-13-15 Recessed
	615-_S_Minutes_May 13 2015 Agenda_1604_05-13-15 Agenda
	615-_S_Minutes_May 20 2015 Regular_1605_05-20-15 Regular
	615-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report April 2015_1581_April 2015 Excess Fee Report
	615-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report April 2015_1582_April 2015 Monthly Report
	615-_S_General Obligation Bond 2015A
	615-_S_General Obligation Bond 2015B
	615-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1602_06-03-15
	615-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1602_06-03-15A
	615-2_R_Sheriff Hammond_Dell Latitude 14 Rugged Laptopsb_1594_RES. DELL LATITUDE 14 RUGGED LAPTOPS
	615-2_S_Sheriff Hammond_Dell Latitude 14 Rugged Laptopsb_1594_Dell Latitude 14 Rugged Laptop Computers
	615-3_R_Bill Hullander_Ridgeside Sanitation Fee_1606_Ridgeside Sanitation Resolution 6.3.15
	615-3_S_Bill Hullander_Ridgeside Sanitation Fee_1606_Ridgeside Interlocal Agreement
	615-4_R_Alecia Poe_Stop Loss Reinsurance Contract Renewal_1590_RES. STOP LOSS REINSURANCE CONTRACT RENEWAL
	615-4_S_Alecia Poe_Stop Loss Reinsurance Contract Renewal_1590_Stop Loss Reinsurance Contract Renewal
	615-5_R_Dan Saieed_Riverwalk technology grant for interpretive signage._1592_Resolution Riverwalk and NPS Smartphones 5 2015
	615-6_R_Bill McGriff_Door Access Materials_1597_RES. DOOR ACCESS MATERIALS
	615-6_S_Bill McGriff_Door Access Materials_1597_Door Access Materials
	615-7_R_Becky Barnes_SPARK Instructional Packets_1600_RES SPARK PE INSTRUCTIONAL PACKETS
	615-7_S_Becky Barnes_SPARK Instructional Packets_1600_SPARK PE Packets
	615-8_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel April 2015_1579_Fuel Resolution April 2015
	615-8_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel April 2015_1579_April 2015 docs
	615-9_R_Albert Kiser_HP Printer Contract_1591_RES. HP PRINTERS CONTRACT
	615-9_S_Albert Kiser_HP Printer Contract_1591_HP Printers Contract
	615-10_R_Don Allen_Athletic Field Infield Clay Mix_1586_RES. INFIELD CLAY MIX CONTRACT
	615-10_S_Don Allen_Athletic Field Infield Clay Mix_1586_Athletic Field Infield Clay Mix
	615-11_R_Don Allen_Courts Community Service Program contract with TDOT_1601_2015-2016 Resolution  and Note Form for Litter Grant 150410
	615-12_R_Todd Leamon_Request for qualifications and fee schedules for Geoenvironmental Consulting Services._1589_RES. GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES & FEES
	615-12_S_Todd Leamon_Request for qualifications and fee schedules for Geoenvironmental Consulting Services._1589_Geoenvironmental Consulting Services & Fees
	615-13_R_Todd Leamon_Tri Community Volunteer Fire Department Station 3_1593_RES. TRI-COMMUNITY VFD STATION 3
	615-13_S_Todd Leamon_Tri Community Volunteer Fire Department Station 3_1593_Tri-Community Volunteer Fire Dept. Station 3
	615-14_R_Todd Leamon_Wetlands Conservation Easement_1596_CERP Resolution
	615-14_S_Todd Leamon_Wetlands Conservation Easement_1596_Resolution attachment
	DRAFT Stream  Wetland Conservation Easement revised
	STREAM & WETLAND CONSERVATION EASEMENT
	C. RIGHTS OF THE HOLDER
	D.  PROHIBITED AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES
	E.  GRANTOR’S RESERVED RIGHTS
	F.  ENFORCEMENT
	To Grantor: City of Chattanooga
	To Grantor: Hamilton County
	To Holder: Hamilton County, Tennessee

	GRANTOR:  City of Chattanooga, Tennessee
	By:  _______________________________________
	Its:  ____Mayor________________________________
	Attest: _____________________________________
	GRANTOR:  Hamilton County, Tennessee
	By:  _______________________________________
	Its:  ____Mayor________________________________
	Attest: _____________________________________
	HOLDER:  Hamilton County, Tennessee, c/o Hamilton County Parks & Recreation
	By:  _______________________________________
	Its:  ____Director________________________________
	Attest: _____________________________________
	GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____.
	GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____.
	GIVEN under my hand and official seal on this ______ day of _______________, 20_____.
	Document Prepared by: Hamilton County Engineering Department


	cover sheet attachment 1
	NORTH OF DISCOVERY DRIVE 03-27-15
	SOUTH OF DISCOVERY DRIVE 03-27-15

	615-15_R_Todd Leamon_Hixson Pike and Thrasher Pike Intersection Improvements and Signalization_1598_RES. HIXSON PIKE & THRASHER PIKE SIGNALIZATION
	615-15_S_Todd Leamon_Hixson Pike and Thrasher Pike Intersection Improvements and Signalization_1598_Hixson Pike and Thrasher Pike Signalization
	615-16_R_Todd Leamon_Approve a Memorandum of Understanding_1599_Res. Mayfield Annex.RiverCity
	615-16_S_Todd Leamon_Approve a Memorandum of Understanding_1599_Mayfield Annex MOU 5.11.15

